
 

Corporate & Democratic Services 

www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings 

 

Planning Committee Agenda 
 

Wednesday, 7 November 2018 at 6.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.   
Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance. 
 
 If you are attending Muriel Matters House for this meeting, please enter the building via the Tourist 
Information Centre entrance. Doors to the Tourist Information Centre will be opened at 17:45pm at 
the earliest and members of public will be escorted up to the Committee Room. Members of public 
are advised that they will need to sign in to comply with health and safety legislation. 

 
For further information, please contact Emily Horne on 01424 451719 or email: 
ehorne@hastings.gov.uk 
 

  Page No. 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

2.   Declarations of Interest  

3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 12 September 2018 1 - 26 

4.   Notification of any additional urgent items  

5.   Other Planning Applications  

 (a)   White Rock Fountain, (Seafront), 27 - 38 

  (Mrs S Wood – Principal Planning Officer) 
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_115337 
 
  

 

 (b)   (Iberian Lighting) Plot Small w, Drury Lane 39 - 54 

  (Mr R Temple - Principal Planning Officer) 
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage 
 
  

 

6.   Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions 55 - 56 

 (Miss L Brooks - Administration Officer) 
 

 35 Heron Close, St Leonards-on-sea 

http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage 
 

  

 

Public Document Pack

http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_115337
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_115337
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_115337
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 1

Present: Councillors Roberts (Chair), Davies (Vice-Chair), Bishop, Cox, 
O'Callaghan, Turner, Beaver and Marlow-Eastwood

64. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors Edwards and Scott.

65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following councillors declared their interests in the minutes as indicated:

Councillor Minute Interest
Beaver 5a –Harrow Lane 

Playing Fields, Harrow 
Lane, St. Leonards on 
Sea

Personal Interest – Member of 
East Sussex County Council.

O’Callaghan 5b – Stade Family 
Amusement Park, The 
Stade, Hastings

Prejudicial Interest – Son 
works at the Stade 
Amusement Park .

66. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15 AUGUST 2018 

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 August 2018 
be approved and signed by the Chair as a true record.

67. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS 

None.

68. PLANNING APPLICATIONS ATTRACTING A PETITION 

68.1 The Stade Family Amusement Park, The Stade, Hastings 

Proposal: Proposed extensions and refurbishments to main 
amusement building including raised roof to 
accommodate additional floor. Increased height and 
footprint of raised huts behind the main building. 
Proposed alterations to park and rides. Proposed new 
formalised and landscaped pedestrian footpath from 
adjacent to shelter, to beach front access. Proposed 
new boathouse and jetty.

Application No: HS/FA/17/01056

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 2

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Yes - Old Town 

No

17 letters of objection received and 1 petition of objection
received.

This item was moved up the agenda with the agreement of the Chair.

Having raised her prejudicial interest, Councillor O’Callaghan was absent from the 
Chamber during discussion and voting of this item.

The Planning Services Manger presented this item for proposed extensions and 
refurbishments to main amusement building including raised roof to accommodate 
additional floor.  Increased height and footprint of raised huts behind the main building.  
Proposed alterations to park and rides. Proposed new formalised and landscaped 
pedestrian footpath from A249 to beach. Proposed new boathouse and jetty at the 
Stade Family Amusement Park, The Stade, Hastings.

The Planning Services Manager recommended the item be deferred until the next 
available Planning Committee meeting as it was not clear to members of the public 
what was being proposed i.e. enlargement of the amusement park area.  She asked 
for an adjournment to allow for a new site notice and re-publication of the application, 
so that the description is re-worded to include reference to the enlargement of the 
amusement park area..  This was proposed by Councillor Beaver and seconded by 
Councillor Davies.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that planning permission be deferred until the next 
available meeting after re-publication of the application.

68.2 Harrow Lane Playing Fields, Harrow Lane, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Outline application,(seeking approval of Access) for 
the erection of 140 residential units (22 no. 4-bed, 61 
no. 3-bed, 36 no. 2-bed, 21 no. 1-bed units) of which 
fifty six are 'affordable homes', public open space, 
access and landscaping at Harrow Lane Playing 
Fields, St Leonards-on-sea.

Application No: HS/OA/17/00901

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

No 

No

22 letters of objection received and 1 petition of objection
received.

Page 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 3

The Planning Services Manager presented this outline application, (seeking approval 
of Access) for the erection of 140 residential units (22 no. 4-bed, 61 no. 3-bed, 36 no. 
2-bed, 21 no. 1-bed units) of which fifty six are 'affordable homes', public open space, 
access and landscaping at Harrow Lane Playing Fields, St. Leonards on Sea.

The Planning Services Manager explained that this item had been deferred at the last 
Planning Committee meeting held on 15 August 2018, to seek clarification on the use 
of a mini roundabout at the entrance to the site or other options for access to the site.  
The application has been brought to the next available Planning Committee following 
receipt of clarification on these points.  The Planning Services Manager explained that 
this was an outline application to consider access only.  She said that the site was 
allocated in the Local Plan for residential development.  She advised Councillor’s that 
the site was not designated as open space and that the use of the land was 
considered at the Local Plan Inquiry.

The Planning Services Manager advised that East Sussex County Council have said 
the proposed access route onto the site is acceptable from a highways point of view.  
She said there is no other natural access route in terms of other surrounding 
development that would naturally lead to the cul-de-sac.  

Alternative access points to the site were considered including (page 20 of the officer’s 
report):- 

1)  From Holmhurst St.Mary site, this was discounted as it placed over capacity on the 
approved Eldridge Way access and placed more traffic directly onto The Ridge as well 
as through the newly created residential streets.

2)  From Harrow Lane, The option of a shared access with 777 The Ridge at the point 
of the existing access was discounted as this was on the line of the existing public 
right of way that would require re-diversion, widening of the road and reduction of land 
available on which to develop. This would have large costs implications which may 
well make the development unviable.

The provision of a mini roundabout was considered by ESCC Highways and their 
response is summarised below:-

1) The visibility required to achieve a mini roundabout would require significant 
cutting into the bank, resulting in large retaining walls fronting Harrow Lane that is 
likely to detrimentally impact on the character and appearance of the area but 
introducing a dominant hard feature in addition to the road, where previously there 
was a bank. This is highly likely to be unacceptable in design terms and not therefore 
a suitable alternative.

2) Mini roundabouts on a straight length of road such as this would only be 
appropriate with traffic calming measures to slow traffic down on Harrow Lane. It is 
possible however that those traffic calming measures would interfere with private 

Page 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 4

access points and the bus stop.

3)  Traffic flows from the site are not going to be to a level to warrant balance in the 
flow ratios required to allow for a mini-roundabout to operate safely (mini-roundabouts 
need good deflection or drivers tend to overshoot the junction when you have straight 
sections (Harrow Lane).

4)  A Mini-roundabout would create difficult turning movement for larger vehicles 
including refuse vehicles and fixed base delivery lorries entering and leaving the site 
 
Members were informed of several updates to the report:- 

Amended Condition 29 as follows:-

The details required by Condition 1 shall include a noise survey, an air quality 
mitigation report and a full and adequate site investigation and soils report and work 
shall not proceed until and unless measures deemed to be necessary by the Local 
Planning Authority as a result of such reports and surveys have been incorporated in 
the development proposals.

Amendments to the Officers report:-
Page 15 
• Tree officer comments – should refer to condition 28;
• Environmental Health comments should refer to condition 29.

Page 17

• 2
nd

 row of table should refer to condition 31.
Page 23

• 2
nd

 para should refer to condition 29 rather than 30.
Page 24

• 1
st
 para – should refer to condition 30 not 31.

Members were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site. 

Councillor Rankin, spoke as the lead petitioner on behalf of the petitioners in objection 
to the application on highway and parking matters, specifically traffic safety and traffic 
flow.  He referred to page 13 of the officer’s report, The Hastings Local Plan – 
Development Management Plan 2015, stating that he objected to paragraph 12 of the 
NPPF “that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.   The 
material considerations he said relate to access.  In regard to the mini roundabout he 
said the Highways objection is tenuous and weak, the consultation comment on page 
14 of the officer’s report regarding the use of a roundabout states that it will be 
necessary to construct a retaining wall to allow visibility display.  However, on page 21 
of the officer’s report they say it would be unacceptable in design terms. He said this 
was not a robust enough reason to object, there are no engineering terms. He said 
access and egress onto the site should be revisited.  140 houses have been proposed 

Page 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 5

with 28 spaces for visitors.  With this limited number of parking spaces there will be 
parking problems.  Appearance can be covered aesthetically by using heritage bricks.

The Planning Services Manager explained that Highways have said the mini 
roundabout is not safe, the traffic flow is not strong enough and will result in traffic 
shooting over the mini roundabout.  The Highway Officer has given very robust 
reasons for their objection.  

Councillor Davies proposed a motion to approve the application.  This was seconded 
by Councillor Turner.

RESOLVED – by (6 votes to 2 against) that the Planning Services Manager be 
authorised to issue planning permission upon completion of an agreement 
under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act to secure:

 a financial contribution of £337,400 towards local highway improvements;

 a financial contribution of £5,000 towards off site highways works;

 a Travel Plan and associated auditing contribution of £6,000;

 a financial contribution towards improving existing play provision at 
Welton Rise play area of £110,600;

 the maintenance, management and monitoring of trees, protected species 
and wildlife areas;

 a financial contributions to libraries of £36,820

 a financial contribution to public rights of way of £3,360

 provision on site of 56 affordable dwellings

unless it has been conclusively shown that the development would not be 
viable and it would still be acceptable in planning terms without the identified 
development contributions.  In the event that the Agreement is not completed 
or the viability issue not resolved by 12 January  2019 that permission be 
refused on the grounds that the application does not comply with the 
relevant policies (policies H3, CI1, T3, EN3, EN6, EN1, and H1) of the Hastings 
Local Plan, The Hastings Planning Strategy 2011-2028 or the Hastings Local 
Plan, Development Management Plan unless an extension of time has been 
agreed in writing by the Planning Services Manager in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Committee.

A) Subject to the above:

Grant Outline Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and external appearance of 
the building(s), and the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the 

Page 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 6

reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority 
in writing before any development is commenced. 

2. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in Condition 1 
above, relating to the layout, scale, siting, design and external 
appearance of any buildings to be erected, and the landscaping of the 
site, shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority and 
shall be carried out as approved. 

3. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the 
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the 
date of this permission. 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

5. The development herby permitted shall be carried out, in terms of 
access only, in accordance with the following approved plans:  ITP 129-
1-01-P2 and ITP 1219-1-02-P2.

No part of the development shall be occupied until such time as the 
vehicular access serving the development has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans (ITP 129-1-01-P2 and ITP 1219-1-
02-P2). 

6. No part of the development shall be occupied until provision has been 
made within the site to prevent surface water draining onto the public 
highway, in accordance with plans and details to be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

7. The access shall have maximum gradients of 4% (1 in 25 from the 
channel line, or for the whole width of the footway/verge whichever is 
the greater and 11% (1 in 9) thereafter. 

8. No part of the development shall be first occupied until visibility splays 
of 2.4 metres by 90 metres have been provided at the proposed site 
vehicular access onto Harrow Lane in accordance with the approved 
plans. Once provided the splays shall thereafter be retained, 
maintained and kept free of all obstructions over a height of 600mm. 

9. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of 
the layout of the access roads and the specification for the 
construction of the access which shall include details of footways, 
surfaces, lighting, parking and cycle parking, have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the use 
hereby permitted shall not commence until the construction of the road 
link has been completed in accordance with the specification to be 
agreed with the Highway Authority. 

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 7

10. No part of the development shall be occupied until the vehicle turning 
space has been constructed within the site in accordance with details 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This space shall thereafter be retained at all times for this use and shall 
not be obstructed. 

11. No development shall take place, including any ground works or works 
of demolition, until a Construction Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter the approved Plan shall be implemented and adhered to in 
full throughout the entire construction period.  The Plan shall provide 
details as appropriate but not be restricted to the following matters,
 the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used 

during construction,

 the method of access and egress and routeing of vehicles during 
construction,

 the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors, 

 the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste, 

 the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the 
development, 

 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, 

 the provision and utilisation of wheel washing facilities and other 
works required to mitigate the impact of construction upon the 
public highway (including the provision of temporary Traffic 
Regulation Orders, traffic management), 

 details of public engagement both prior to and during construction 
works. 

12. No development shall take place, including demolition, on the site until 
an agreed pre commencement condition survey of the surrounding 
highway network has been submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Any damage caused to the highway as a 
direct consequence of the construction traffic shall be rectified at the 
applicant’s expense. 

13. No part of the development shall be occupied until a Travel Plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.  The Travel Plan 
once approved shall thereafter be implemented as specified within the 
approved document.  The Travel Plan shall be completed in accordance 
with the latest guidance and good practice documentation as published 
by the Department for Transport and/or as advised by the Highway 

Page 7



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 8

Authority. 

14. Upon the occupation/commencement of use, the Applicant shall 
implement the measures incorporated within the approved travel plan.  
The Applicant shall thereafter monitor report and subsequently revise 
the travel plan as specified within the approved document. 

15. No development shall be commenced until such time as a Traffic 
Regulation Order securing the provision of parking restriction on the 
west side of Harrow lane opposite the site access has been approved 
in writing by the County Council and written confirmation of this 
approval is made available to the Local Planning Authority.

16. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until a 
drainage strategy that includes details of the proposed means of 
foul sewerage and surface water disposal/management, together 
with an implementation timetable,  have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

(ii) Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings or 
flats hereby approved shall occur until those works have been 
completed.

(iii)   No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved 
shall occur until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in 
writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary drainage 
infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the 
development.

(vi)  Prior to occupation of the development evidence (including 
photographs) should be submitted showing that the drainage 
system has been constructed as per the final agreed detailed 
drainage designs. 

17. (i) Surface water runoff from the proposed development should be 
limited to a maximum of 10.5l/s, which is the rate agreed to by 
Southern Water for all rainfall events including those with a 1 in 
100 (plus 40%) annual probability of occurrence.  Evidence of this 
(in the form of hydraulic calculations) should be submitted with the 
detailed drainage drawings.  The hydraulic calculations should 
take into account the connectivity of the different surface water 
drainage features.  

(ii) The detailed design should also include information on how 
surface water flows exceeding the capacity of the surface water 
drainage features will be managed safely.  This should incorporate 
measures to intercept and slow down overland surface water flows 
through the woodland south of the development. 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 9

(iii)   The detailed design of the attenuation ponds should be informed 
by findings of additional groundwater monitoring between autumn 
and spring.  The design should leave at least 1m unsaturated zone 
between the base of the ponds and the highest recorded 
groundwater level.  If this cannot be achieved, details of measures 
that will be taken to manage the impacts of high groundwater on 
the drainage system should be provided.  Evidence of how 
impacts of high groundwater on the structural integrity of the tank 
will be managed should also be provided.        

18. A maintenance and management plan for the entire drainage system 
should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority before any 
construction commences on site to ensure the designed system takes 
into account design standards of those responsible for maintenance.  
The management plan should cover the following:-

a)  The plan should clearly state who will be responsible for managing 
all aspects of the surface water drainage system, including piped 
drains, and the appropriate authority should be satisfied with the 
submitted details.

b)  Evidence that these responsibility arrangements will remain in place 
throughout the lifetime of the development should be provided to 
the Local Planning Authority. 

19. The applicant should detail measures to  manage flood risk, both on 
and off the site, during the construction phase.  This may take the form 
of a standalone document or incorporated into the Construction 
Management Plan for the development. 

20. No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance 
with a Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation which has been 
submitted to and approved  in writing  by the Local Planning Authority. 

21. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until 
the archaeological site investigation and post investigation 
assessment (including provision for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of results and archive deposition) has been completed in 
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of 
Investigation approved under condition [20] to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the County Planning 
Authority. 

22. Safe access to footpath Hastings 142, 143 and 144 is to be maintained 
at all times during and following completion of the development.   
Details of walking and cycle links should be submitted as part of a 
Reserved Matters application.  

23. The landscaping details required by condition 1 above (reserved 
matters) shall include details of open space and play provision. 

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 10

24. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, 
vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan for biodiversity (CEMP: Biodiversity) has be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP: 
Biodiversity shall include the following:

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging  construction activities.

b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be 
provided as a set of method statements).

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to 
biodiversity features.

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to oversee works.

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works 
(ECoW) or similarly competent person.

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented 
throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the 
approved details and phasing agreed, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. 

25. No development shall take place until an ecological design strategy 
(EDS).   The EDS shall include the following:

a) Purpose and conservation objectives for the proposed works.
b) Review of site potential and constraints.
c) Detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) to achieve stated 

objectives.
d) Extent and location/area of proposed works on appropriate 

scale maps and plans.

e) Type and source of materials to be used where appropriate, 
e.g. native species of local provenance.

f) Timetable for implementation demonstrating that works are 
aligned with the proposed phasing of development.

g) Persons responsible for implementing the works.

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 11

h) Details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance.
i) Details for monitoring and remedial measures.
j) Details for disposal of any wastes arising from works.

The EDS shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details and all features shall be retained in that manner thereafter.

26. A landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) shall be 
submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority prior to commencement of the development. The content 
of the LEMP shall include the following:

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might 

influence management.

c) Aims and objectives of management.
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.
e) Prescriptions for management actions.
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan 

capable of being rolled forward over a five-year period).

g) Details of the body or organization responsible for 
implementation of the plan.

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding 
mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan will 
be secured by the developer with the management body(ies) 
responsible for its delivery.

The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show 
that conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) 
how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed 
and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully 
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved 
scheme.  The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details. 

27. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision of 
open space (including children's play area), as part of the development 
within the site in accordance with policy EN8 of the Hastings Local 
Plan and national guidance on open space provision has been 
submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme 
shall include details of the laying out and construction of the open 

Page 11



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 12

space, a timetable for its provision and arrangements for its future 
maintenance.  The open space shall then be provided and maintained 
in accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning authority. 

28. No development shall take place until the measures outlined in the 
submitted arboricultural report (titles Arboricultural Impacts 
Assessment and Method Statement, prepared by PJV Consultancy, 
dated August 2017) have been fully implemented, unless:

(i) the programme for such measures is otherwise specified within that 
document in which case the works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the timescales contained therein or;

(ii) unless the scheme(s), or programme(s) of measures contained 
within the arboricultural reports is otherwise first varied, by way of 
prior written approval from the Local Planning Authority.  

29. The details required by Condition 1 shall include a noise survey, an air 
quality mitigation report and a full and adequate site investigation and 
soils report and work shall not proceed until and unless measures 
deemed to be necessary by the Local Planning Authority as a result of 
such reports and surveys have been incorporated in the development 
proposals.

30. Each individual dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until a 
minimum of one electric vehicle charging point has been installed on 
the given building(s) with dedicated off street parking, and shall 
thereafter be retained for that purpose. 

31. The details submitted for condition 1 (reserved matters) above shall 
include provision of at least 2% of the dwellings to be fully adapted for 
wheelchair users. 

32. Before the development hereby approved is occupied provision shall 
be made for the ability to connect to fibre-based broadband. 

Reasons:

1. The application is in outline only.

2. The application is in outline only.

3. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
92 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

4. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
92 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 13

5. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

6. In the interests of highway safety.

7. In the interests of road safety.

8. In the interests of road safety.

9. To secure satisfactory standards of access for the proposed 
development.

10. In the interest of highway safety and for this benefit and convenience 
of the public at large.

11. To the interests of highways safety and the amenities in the area.

12. In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area.

13. To encourage and promote sustainable transport.

14. To encourage and promote sustainable transport.

15. In the interests of amenity and road safety.

16. To prevent increased risk of flooding.

17. To prevent increased risk of flooding.

18. To prevent increased risk of flooding.

19. To prevent increased risk of flooding.

20. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is 
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

21. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is 
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

22. To maintain Public Rights of Way.

23. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
character and amenity of the area. 

24. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance.

25. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance of 
the site and in the interests of the amenity of the neighbouring 

Page 13



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 14

residential occupiers. 

26. To protect and enhance the ecological value of the site.

27. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
character and amenity of the area. 

28. In the interests of the health of the trees and the visual amenity of the 
area.

29. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

30. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

31. To comply with condition LRA1 of the Hastings Local Plan, 
Development Management Plan.

32. To ensure the development complies with policy SC1 of the Hastings 
Local Plan: The Hastings Planning Strategy.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. The applicant is advised that the 300 mm diameter surface water sewer 
requires a clearance of 3 metres either side of the sewer to protect it 
from construction works and allow for future access for maintenance. 
No development or new tree planting should be located within 3 metres 
either side of the centreline of the public sewer.

4. The applicant is advised that the 200 mm diameter water trunk main 
requires a clearance of 6 metres either side of the water trunk main to 
protect it from construction works and allow for future access for 
maintenance.

5. The applicant is advised that no development or new tree planting 
should be located within 6 metres either side of the centreline of the 
water trunk main without consent of Southern Water.
All existing infrastructure, including protective coatings and cathodic 
protection, should be protected during the course of construction 
works. No new soakaways should be located within 5m of a public 
sewer and water main.

Page 14



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 15

6. The applicant is advised that noncompliance with Sewers for Adoption 
standards will preclude future adoption of the foul and surface water 
sewerage network on site. The design of drainage should ensure that 
no groundwater or land drainage is to enter public sewers.

7. The applicant is advised that due to changes in legislation that came in 
to force on 1st October 2011 regarding the future ownership of sewers 
it is possible that a sewer now deemed to be public could be crossing 
the above property. Therefore, should any sewer be found during 
construction works, an investigation of the sewer will be required to 
ascertain its condition, the number of properties served, and potential 
means of access before any further works commence on site.

The applicant is advised to discuss the matter further with Southern 
Water, Sparrowgrove House Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire 
SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk”.

8. The applicant is advised that a formal application for connection to the 
water supply is required in order to service this development. Please 
contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House Sparrowgrove, 
Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or 
www.southernwater.co.uk

9. The applicant is advised that all side elevations facing access roads 
should be designed to a high standard and avoid blank facades and 
large expanse of wall.

10. The applicant is advised that the gateway 'key' buildings located either 
side of the junction into the site from Harrow Lane shall incorporate a 
design that better addresses its corner location than currently shown 
on illustrative plans and elevations. This amended design shall form 
part of the reserved matters application.

11. The applicant is advised that rear parking courts should be enclosed 
by brick walls and this should be shown within any subsequent 
Reserved Matters application. 

12. The applicant is advised that parking spaces to the front of garages 
should have a depth of 6m.  Any Reserved Matters application should 
incorporate this into the design. 

13. The applicant is advised that they must ensure the proposed works, 
hereby approved, do not contravene laws protecting wildlife including 
the Countryside and Wildlife Act 1981. Where the applicant is in doubt 
they should contact Natural England on wildlife@naturalengland.org.uk 
Telephone 020 802 61089 or Environment and Natural Resources on 
parks@hastings.gov.uk Telephone 01424 451107 prior to 
commencement of any works.

14. The applicant should contact the Sussex Police Architect Liaison 

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 16

Officer at the Police Station, Bohemia Road, Hastings to discuss the 
"Secured by Design" principles for new developments. 

15. No site clearance or tree or hedge removal shall be carried out on site 
between the 1st March and 31st July inclusive in any year, unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

16. Nothing in this permission shall be construed as giving approval to the 
details shown on the plans accompanying the application hereby 
approved.  Such plans have been treated as being indicative only.

17. Incentives for residents encourage them to rethink journeys from the 
very start of locating in a new neighbourhood to be adopted within the 
travel plan to be resubmitted with the reserved matters applications, to 
include: 

1)  3 months of bus travel with option to renew for a further 6 months 
with discount

2)  £100 for cycles or accessories
3)  5 supermarket deliveries
4)  Car club vehicle dedicated space within the development
5) Other incentives should include as suggested in the residents’ 

information pack plus scheduled cycle training and Bike doctor 
visits. 

69. OTHER PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

69.1 20 Milward Crescent, Hastings 

Proposal: Retrospective permission for a change of use from C3 
(Dwelling House) to C4 (House in Multiple 
Occupation) containing 5 bedrooms.

Application No: HS/FA/18/00625

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

No

No

 9 letters of objection received

The Principal Planning Officer, Mr Temple introduced this application for retrospective 
permission for a change of use from C3 (Dwelling House) to C4 (House in Multiple 
Occupation) containing 5 bedrooms at 20 Millward Crescent, Hastings. 

Members were informed of several updates to the report:- 

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 17

• One further neighbour comment has been made regarding the number of 
parking permits issued to this property.  

• Parking services have confirmed that no more than two permits can be issued 
each addressed property. As such 10 permits could be issued to this 5 
bedroom HMO but only if parking capacity is available. Only one parking permit 
is issued at present, as set out in the committee report.  Given the control 
Parking Services have this does not for a sustainable reason for refusal.

Members were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site. 

The Principal Planning Officer said the loss of a single family dwelling for a family 
cannot be fully justified in this area and that there is an identified housing need within 
the Borough for large single family dwellings.

Councillor Beaver proposed a motion to refuse the application.  This was seconded 
by Councillor Davies.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that planning permission be refused subject to 
the following reasons:

1. This application fails to satisfy policy DS1 of the Hastings Planning 
Strategy 2014 and policy HC1 of the Development Management Plan 
2015. The application constitutes the loss of a single family dwelling 
which could have been retained. There is an identified housing need 
within the borough for large single family dwellings and the conversion 
of this property to a House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) therefore 
cannot be justified. 

Note to the Applicant

1. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

69.2 Railings fronting 37-75 Marline Road, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Display to show amount of EU investment in the St 
Leonards area. Requirement from funders of our EU 
SHINE (Sustainable Homes in Inclusive 
Neighbourhoods) Project

Application No: HS/AA/18/00614

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

No

No

 Applicant holds a politically restricted post

Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 18

The Principal Planning Officer, Mr Temple presented this application for advertisement 
consent for a display to show amount of EU investment in the St Leonards area. 
Requirement from funders of our EU SHINE (Sustainable Homes in Inclusive 
Neighbourhoods) Project on Railings forming 37-75 Marline Road, St. Leonards on 
Sea. 

 
Members were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site. 

Members were advised that this application had been brought to Planning Committee 
because the applicant holds a politically restricted post.  Members were advised that 
they could only consider the impact on amenity and public safety.  This was not a 
moving sign with no illumination and complied with policy.

Councillor Roberts proposed a motion to approve the application.  This was 
seconded by Councillor Davies.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that Advertisement Consent be granted subject 
to the following conditions:

1. This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is 
subject to the standard conditions set out in the Regulations 

2. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to—

a) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, 
harbour or aerodrome (civil or military);

b) obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, 
railway signal or aid to navigation by water or air; or 

c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security 
or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

3. Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of 
advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair 
the visual amenity of the site. 

4. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose 
of displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that 
does not endanger the public. 

5. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be 
removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the 

Page 18



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 19

public or impair visual amenity. 

6. The advertisement hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

Block plan showing sign location (dated 15/08/18) and photograph of 
temporary sign. 

Reasons:

1. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

2. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

3. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

4. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

5. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

6. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this consent may 

result in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

69.3 6-8 Pelham Arcade, Pelham Place, Hastings 

Proposal: Replacement of lead guttering with new zinc guttering 
to match the existing zinc roof covering.

Application No: HS/LB/18/00391

Page 19



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 20

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Yes - Old Town 

Grade II*

Application on Council owned land.

The Planning Services Manager, Mrs Evans, presented this application for the 
replacement of lead guttering with new zinc guttering to match the existing zinc roof 
covering at 6-8 Pelham Arcade, Pelham Place, Hastings due to theft of the lead 
guttering on multiple occasions.

Members were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site. 

Councillor Beaver proposed a motion to approve the application.  This was seconded 
by Councillor Turner.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that Listed Building Consent be granted subject 
to the following conditions:

1. The work to which this consent relates shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this consent 
is granted. 

2. The works hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:

BA1829.01D, BA1829.02A, BA1829.03A, BA1829.04C, BA1829.05 and 
BA1829.06 

3. With the exception of internal works the building works required to 
carry out the development allowed by this permission must only be 
carried out within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

4. Prior to commencement of works, a methodology statement shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
to explain how the existing lead is to be removed and then how the new 
zinc clad guttering is to be installed. The statement shall cover how the 
roof lantern glazing will be removed and replaced to enable the works. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
methodology statement.  

5. Prior to commencement of works, drawn details shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the junction 
treatment between the new zinc clad guttering and the lead guttering 

Page 20



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 21

either side. The details shall be 1:5 cross sections and plan drawings 
showing the junction treatment. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents.

4. To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade II* 
Listed Building is adequately protected.

5. To ensure the architectural and historic character of this Grade II* 
Listed Building is adequately protected, and to ensure water from the 
gutter along the terrace is drained properly.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this consent may 

result in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The reason for granting this consent is:

National Planning Policy Framework Section 12 applies. The works 
proposed will not harm the designated heritage asset.

69.4 Store 1, Bottle Alley, Eversfield Place, Lower Promenade, St. Leonards on 
Sea 

Proposal: Change of use from B8 (Storage) to D1 
(Gallery/Studio)

Application No: HS/FA/18/00535

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Yes - Warrior Square 

No

Page 21



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 22

Public Consultation Not delegated – Application on Council owned land.

The Planning Officer Ms Ranson, presented this application for the proposed change 
of use from B8 (Storage) to D1 (Gallery/Studio) at Store 1, Bottle Alley, Eversfield 
Place, Lower Promenade, St. Leonards on Sea.

Updates:-
• Deferment requested for this item: 

Estates have notified us of works on site to fit windows / door. Estates have been 
asked to forward drawings and photographs of the windows and door fitted so that 
they may be considered for any impact on the heritage asset. 

Key Points:-
• This application is a minor application made by Hastings Borough Council Estates 

Department and so needs to come before Planning Committee .
• It is recommended that this matter be deferred to allow for submission and 

consideration of material alterations to windows and door openings.
 
Councillor Davies proposed a motion to defer the application.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Beaver.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that planning permission be deferred to allow 
submission of further plans in respect of proposed external alterations. The 
application will be brought back to the next available Planning Committee 
following consideration of additional and amended plans and any necessary 
publicity.

69.5 First Floor, 379 London Road, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Change of use of first floor from Health and Well-
Being Centre (D1) to 1 bedroom flat (C3 use) 
incorporating conversion of loft space - development 
of roof dormer to rear roof slope and insertion of three 
roof-lights in front roof slope.

Application No: HS/FA/18/00612

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

No

No

Not delegated - Application by Councillor

Councillor Rankin who was sat in the public gallery had a prejudicial interest in this 
application and left the chamber.

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 23

The Planning Officer, Ms Ranson presented this application for the change of use of 
first floor from Health and Well-Being Centre (D1) to 1 bedroom flat (C3 use) 
incorporating conversion of loft space - development of roof dormer to rear roof slope 
and insertion of three roof-lights in front roof slope at First Floor, 379 London Road, St. 
Leonards on Sea.

Key Points:
• The loss of the existing D1 use is considered acceptable. 
• The proposed flat will be situated in a highly sustainable location.
• The flat will make efficient use of the upper floors of the building and the planning 

principle of ‘living above the shop’ is widely established and supported.
• The flat will provide a good internal living space and has access to Alexandra Park 

for outdoor amenity opportunity.
• There is storage space for waste and parking available within the rear curtilage of 

the property, accessible for occupants of the flat through the building.
• The proposed rear dormer is not considered to be harmful to the character of the 

area.

Members were shown plans, photographs and elevations of the application site. 

The Planning Officer stated the dormer had been reduced in size: The eaves space 
had been removed and consequently the overall floor space had been reduced (D 
layout).  

Councillor O’Callaghan proposed a motion to approve the application.  This was 
seconded by Councillor Davies.

RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

00B, 01B, 379LR-E-02E 

3. With the exception of internal works the building works required to 
carry out the development allowed by this permission must only be 
carried out within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

4. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the extension hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing 
building.  

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 24

5. The flat hereby approved shall not be occupied until a scheme of works 
for sound-proofing of the flat have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter carried out to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents. 

4. In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

5. In order to protect residential amenity. 

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. Building Regulations are a separate raft of legislation to the Planning 
Act. The proposal is likely be a material change of use to which the 
Building Regulations 1991 apply and you are advised to seek building 
regulation advise on submission under the regulations before the 
change of use takes place. 

70. PLANNING APPEALS AND DELEGATED DECISIONS 

The Planning Services Manager reported that one planning appeal has been 
received and one appeal had been allowed.  She also reported on the number of 
delegated decisions.  

All matters had arisen between 3 August 2018 and 31 August 2018.

The report was noted.

Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE

12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PC. 25

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 7.12 pm)

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



White Rock Fountain (Seafront)
Hastings
TN34 1JL

Renovation and alteration of the existing fountain and installation of
bench seating, paved area, planting area and water misters play area.

Hastings Pier

6

2
4

17

3

5

9

The

PH

Hotel

Promenade

The Hub

Play Area

Hastings

True Crime

11

Source Park

Bowls Club

8.4m

32 33

37

21

34 35

16

20

26

23.7m LB

Cliff

Car Park

Norman CourtSM

Carriage Court

Mean Low Water

Palace Avenue Arcade

TCB

Subway

Groyne

1 to 15

1 to 10

GroynesShelter

27 to 31

Shingle

South African

Anderida
Preston

El Sub Sta

The Cottage

Darcy Hall

War Memorial
Mean High Water

White Rock Theatre

Clambers Play Centre

Shingle

SM

SM

Shingle

1

Shelter

37

SM

SM

1

Shelter

Shingle

WHITE ROCK

WHITE ROCK ROAD
WHITE ROCK GARDENS

ST MICHAEL'S PLACE

WHITE ROCK ROAD

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2018]. OS [100021328]

Oct 2018

HS/FA/18/00453
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

Page 27

Agenda Item 5a



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (a)

Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 07 November 2018

Report from: Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address: White Rock Fountain,(Seafront),  Hastings,
TN34 1JL

Proposal: Renovation and alteration of the existing
fountain and installation of bench seating,
paved area, planting area and water misters
play area.

Application No: HS/FA/18/00453

Recommendation: Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward: CASTLE 2018
Conservation Area: Yes - White Rock
Listed Building: No

Applicant: Hastings Borough Council on behalf of the
Foreshore Trust per Saville Jones Consultants Ltd
74 Victoria Road Worthing  West Sussex BN11
1UN

Public Consultation
Site Notice: Yes
Press Advertisement: Yes - Conservation Area
Letters of Objection: 0
Petitions of Objection Received: 0
Letters of Support: 0
Petitions of Support Received: 0
Neutral comments received 0

Application Status:  Not delegated -
Council application on behalf of the Foreshore
Trust

1. Site and Surrounding Area
The White Rock fountain is located directly on the main promenade on Hastings Seafront,
just west of Hastings Pier. The fountain is a short distance from the town centre, and forms
the roof of the Source Park, a skate park located in the former White Rock Baths below the
promenade.  Its location on the seafront between the town centre and Hastings Pier means
that it forms a key feature of the public realm, easily visible and accessible by pedestrians
along the seafront. Page 29



The White Rock Fountain was created in 1987 after several roof forms covered the main
swimming pool of the former White Rock Baths.  The fountain was in use for several years
but was decommissioned due to excessive water use and running costs.

Relevant site constraints

Hastings Historic Core Archaeological Notification Area (ANA)
Flood zones 2 and 3
Sited close to several listed buildings - namely Hastings Pier, seafront shelter opposite
White Rock Pavilion, the Boar War memorial adjacent to the pier, 16-24 White Rock and
Palace Court, White Rock.

The application site is also located within the White Rock Conservation Area, and the White
Rock and America Ground Cultural Quarter, as identified in the Hastings Development
Management Plan 2015.

2. Proposed development
This is a full planning application for the renovation and alteration of the existing fountain,
together with the installation of bench seating, a paved area, planting, and water misters. The
intention of the proposal is to significantly enhance the public realm on this well used section
of promenade.

The application drawings illustrate how the site is to be set out and landscaped.   The central
fountain area will have the theme of the exploded Hastings rock, which will be animated by a
mister jet that will add a sense of theatre and play to the experience.  The white rocks
symbolise the White Rock headland, blown apart by a central jet of water and its fragmented
rocks, enveloped by the ''sea mist''. The rocks will have the words "White Rock Hastings"
carved into the surface, ''sign-posting'' the location and reinforcing the sense of place.  Whilst
the water misters will be available for children to play in, it is important to note that their
purpose is not just for children's play, but to provide a modern and well needed improvement
to the public realm in this location.

This central space will be made accessible with ramps and have enough bench seating to
provide an attractive rest area.  Replacement and new planting within the former water tank
area will have a more coastal theme and be naturalistic in form, also providing biodiversity
benefits.

The application is supported by the following documents:

Heritage Statement
Design and Access Statement
Site Waste Management Plan

Relevant Planning History
HS/FA/12/00132 Change of use and alterations to promenade level building and part of

lower level to cycle hire shop, café and ancillary use (Source Park).
Approved April 2012

HS/13/00432 Change of use from D2 to D1 (Seafront Community Showroom).
Approved August 2013

Page 30



National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)
FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
FA6 - Strategic Policy for The Seafront
SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
EN1 - Built and Historic Environment

Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)
LP1 - Considering Planning Applications
DM1 - Design Principles
DM3 - General Amenity
HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage Assets
(including Conservation Areas)
HN4 - Development Affecting Heritage Assets with Archaeological and Historic Interest or
Potential Interest
CQ1 - Cultural Quarters

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.

Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
Function well;
Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
Are visually attractive in terms of:

Layout
Architecture
Landscaping

Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:

Building types
Materials
Arrangement of streets

Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Page 31



Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.

Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultation comments
Hastings Borough Council (Conservation) - no objection subject to conditions
The application was assessed in the context of its impact on the setting of the nearby listed
buildings and the significance and setting of the conservation area. Conditions were
recommended to ensure build quality.

Hastings Borough Council (Estates) - no comment
Estates had no comments to make on the application to either support or object.

Hastings Borough Council (Amenities, Parks and Open Spaces) - no comment
No comments were received following consultation

Hastings Borough Council (Major Projects) - no comment
As the manager responsible for the project it was acknowledged that it would not be
appropriate to submit formal comments

Hastings Borough Council (Marketing) - no comment
No comments were received following consultation

Environment Agency - no comment
No comments were received following consultation

Foreshore Trust - no comment
No comments were received following consultation

4. Representations
No comments were received following the display of a site notice.

5. Determining Issues
The main issue to consider as part of this application relates to the potential loss of historic
fabric, and the overall impact on the significance and setting of the White Rock conservation
area and nearby listed buildings. The contribution to the public realm and the impact of the
proposal on strengthening the town's cultural quarters, together with meeting tourism
objectives, are also key considerations.

a) Principle

The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with Policy
LP1 of the Development Management Plan 2015 in this respect and acceptable in principle
subject to other local plan policies.

b) Impact on character and appearance of area, and the White Rock Conservation Area

The proposal seeks to re-model the existing fountain structure and re-purpose it as a modern
seaside attraction. 

Page 32



The existing arrangement of the fountain sits fairly low in the context of the promenade and
fits in with the general character of this part of the seafront. Whilst a different arrangement is
proposed, the new development will still maintain a significant part of the original structure.
The fountain and seating area will remain low lying, and as such, will not obstruct views
along the open seafront. Similarly, this low lying nature of the development will not impede
on the setting of the nearby listed buildings. The proposal therefore accords with Policy EN1
of the Hastings Planning Strategy 2014, and HN1 of the Development Management Plan
2015, in that it makes a positive contribution to the quality, character and sense of place, and
does not harm the significance and setting of the surrounding conservation areas, or nearby
listed buildings.

Given the prominent location of the fountain directly on the promenade between the Pier and
the town centre, it is important however, to ensure that the proposals are executed with good
quality detail, materials and finishes. Suggested pre-commencement conditions (4 & 5) have
been discussed with the applicant, who has agreed to their inclusion, should permission be
granted.

c) Layout

The scheme proposes a significant amount of planting within the site area, with the paved
area and misters located centrally.  Amendments to the scheme were proposed to increase
the amount of planting, and remove the grilles originally proposed covering the roof lights to
the source park below. These were no longer needed given the arrangement of planting
around them. The seating has also been simplified in line with the amended paved area.
These changes complement the new area and are not considered harmful in terms of the
site's layout. The design, massing and layout of the proposed development is therefore
acceptable and accords with the requirements of Policy DM1 of the Development
Management Plan in that it achieves a good standard of design, which protects and
enhances local character.

d) Impact on neighbouring residential amenities

There are no residential properties on this side of the promenade.  The A259 separates the
promenade from the commercial area opposite, which includes some residential properties
on the upper floors.

Given the nature of this area as a prominent tourist location, the proposed seating, planting
and water mist area are unlikely to cause additional harm to any residential occupiers in
terms of noise or other disturbance when compared to the current situation. The road
separating the site from these properties provides ample distance to ensure any potential
disturbance from tourist activity is minimised.  Therefore, the proposal is considered
acceptable in terms of its impact on residential amenity, in accordance with Policy DM3 of
the Development Management Plan.

e) Cultural quarters and objectives for the Seafront

Cultural quarters are set out in the Development Management Plan 2015 as areas where the
Council wish to support and develop cultural activities and infrastructure, to help the local
economy and enhance well-being for the community at large, as well as the town's visitors.
The proposed works to this area are fully complementary to this approach in that they
provide a significant improvement to the public realm, to the benefit of visitors to the area.
The proposals also support the aims of Policy FA6 of the Planning Strategy, in that they are
implementing improvements to the seafront, working towards the regeneration of key
landmark sites along the seafront, from the Stade to West Marina, supporting development
that builds on the Seafront's distinctive heritage and attractiveness as a destination forPage 33



leisure and recreational activity.

f) Screening of Application under Habitats Regulations 2017 - Impact of Development on

Ashdown Forest Special Area of Conservation ( SAC)

The Council undertook an Air Quality Impact Assessment in 2018. The purpose of the
assessment was to identify likely significant effects of planned housing and employment
growth in Hastings Borough on the conservation objectives of Ashdown Forest Special Area
of Conservation (SAC) from 2017 to 2033. The assessment took account of the traffic growth
expected on roads within the vicinity of the Ashdown Forest SAC/Special Protection Area
(SPA), not just arising from development within Hastings, but also, compliant with the
requirement of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, in combination
with the anticipated growth arising from the development plans of other neighbouring
authorities.   The focus of the Assessment was on Ashdown Forest SAC and SPA.

It was not considered necessary to consider air quality implications of growth in Hastings
Borough on the Pevensey Levels SAC and Ramsar site or the Lewes Downs SAC. In respect
of Pevensey Levels SAC/Ramsar site the interest feature of this SAC (Anisus vorticulus -
aka. a snail) is not affected by nitrogen from vehicle emissions. Lewes Downs SAC is too far
removed to be affected.  Nitrogen deposition from additional traffic beyond that modelled
would have to be four times that currently expected from all traffic to exceed critical load at
this location.

The Council has modelled the expected growth in Hastings to 2033 including the Local Plan,
existing planning permissions and the emerging Area Action Plan and demonstrated that
development will not result in an adverse effect on the integrity of Ashdown Forest either
alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  As such the proposed development is
considered to be within the allowances made within the strategic modelling and is not
considered to harm the special conservation objectives of Ashdown Forest, Pevensey Levels
or Lewes Downs Special Areas of Conservation.

g) Site constraints

Given that the works are taking place above ground level, the sites location within an
Archaeological Notification Area and flood zones 2 and 3 do not warrant further
consideration as part of this application. No further action is required.

h) Other

The proposed development will not impact on the access to the public footpath or White
Rock Road.   The new seating area will be fully accessible and will provide an attractive
resting area for all.   The design has ensured the rock and spray feature are set back within
the main body of the old fountain and do not represent a trip hazard to passing pedestrians. 

Quality materials and planting will be utilised in the scheme, the use of tactile paving to alert
all users of access to the space and of the protruding benches will be conditioned (no 3).
The electric elements and control panels will be located within a locked area to the rear of
the seating area.

Page 34



6. Evidence of Community Involvement
The applicant engaged the local community by way of a public exhibition at The Pier, White
Rock Hotel and Hastings Borough Council website. This dialogue with the local community
has helped inform the planning application and scheme design and the comments were
included in the Design and Access Statement.

7. Conclusion
The proposed works to the existing fountain area will make significant improvements to the
public realm, contributing positively to sense of place and local distinctiveness. The works
are sensitive to the significance and setting of the surrounding conservation area and nearby
listed building, and are not considered to negatively affect the residential amenities of nearby
occupiers.

These proposals therefore comply with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38
(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.

The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

8. Recommendation

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

1721 SK18H, 1721 SK20A

3. No development shall commence until the following samples of materials
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority:

Timber for the seating
Paving stones
Tactile paving
Stone for the white rock feature

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved
and no occupation of any building approved shall occur until those works
have been completed.

Page 35



4. No development shall commence until the following details (to include
architects or manufacturers details where relevant) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

The central white rock feature
Proposed new seating
Drinking fountain
Lighting units
Mister jet units

The details should cover the size, detailed appearance of materials, finishes
and fixings.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved
and no occupation of any building approved shall occur until those works
have been completed.

5. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of soft landscaping.
New soft landscaping details shall include planting plans; written
specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with
plant and grass establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant
sizes and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate together with an
implementation programme.

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. In the interests of the character and amenity of the White Rock Conservation
Area.

4. In the interests of the character and amenity of the White Rock Conservation
Area.

5. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the visual
amenity.

Notes to the Applicant

1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

3. The Health and Safety at Work Etc. Act 1974 will apply.
Page 36



_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs S Wood, Telephone 01424 01424 783329

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/18/00453 including all letters and documents

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



(Iberian Lighting) Plot small w
Drury Lane
St Leonards-on-sea
TN38 9BA

Clearance of site and erection of factory premises including five
satellite commercial units.

1

Works

Wood

DepotFactory

Iris

House

Wa
reh

ou
se

Gillsman's

1614

12

Court

LB

114 112

118

Buttercup

12a

120

12b
WB

Tank

1 to 17

El Sub Sta

Mast (telecommunication)

Co
wd

en
 W

alk

Works

Factory Depot

Factory

Court

Depot

1 to 17

El Sub Sta
DRURY LANE

EL
IZA

BE
TH

 R
OA

D

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2018]. OS [100021328]

Oct 2018

HS/FA/18/00547
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

Page 39

Agenda Item 5b



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (b)

Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 07 November 2018

Report from: Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address: (Iberian Lighting) Plot small w, Drury Lane, St
Leonards-on-sea, TN38 9BA

Proposal: Clearance of site and erection of factory
premises including five satellite commercial
units.

Application No: HS/FA/18/00547

Recommendation: Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward: WISHING TREE 2018
Conservation Area: No
Listed Building: No

Applicant: Iberian Lighting LTD per Coster Associates The
Granary Rural Business Centre Broad Farm
Hellingly, East Sussex. BN27 4DU

Public Consultation
Site Notice: Yes
Press Advertisement: No
Letters of Objection: 0
Petitions of Objection Received: 0
Letters of Support: 0
Petitions of Support Received: 0
Neutral comments received 0

Application Status:  Not delegated -
Application partly on Council owned land.

1. Site and Surrounding Area
The site comprises a long, single storey building currently occupied by Iberian Lighting with
three separate single storey buildings to the rear used as storage and workshops. The site is
currently in use as B2 (general industrial) and forms part of Ponswood Industrial Estate with
Gillsman’s Wood to the south forming part of Ponds Wood Local Nature reserve. A group
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is located within the section of Gillsman’s Wood which
bounds the rear boundary to the south.

The site is relatively flat. To the south Gillsman’s Wood slopes down to the south.
Page 41



Constraints
Waste and Minerals consultation area
Group Tree Preservation Order (TPO) to south
Archaeological notification area
Local Nature Reserve to south
Local Wildlife site to south
SSSI Impact Risk Zone
Flood zone 1
Risk of ground and surface water flooding

2. Proposed development
The application is for the demolition of the existing single storey units and replacement with
two storey factory units to the rear of the site with 5no two storey satellite units to the front
(north of the site) located against the eastern boundary. A new, wider vehicle access is
proposed with cycle and motor vehicle parking to the front and middle of the site. This would
provide 31 spaces, including 3 disabled spaces and 7 cycle parking spaces. The units would
be clad in grey colour coated, metal composite panels with grey powder coated aluminium
windows and green galvanised colour coated roller shutters and doors.

The application is supported by the following documents:

Arboriculture report
Design and access statement
Sustainable management maintenance plan

Relevant Planning History

HS/63/00318 Erection of Factory. Granted April 1963
HS/63/01184 Extension to factory to provide storage and holding bay (phase 2).

Granted January 1964.
HS/66/01114 Erection of extension to production area and associated office space.

Granted December 1966
HS/71/00415 Erection of extension to factory. Granted May 1971.
HS/73/00717 Erection of garage and workshop. Granted May 1973.
HS/FA/78/00388 Erection of new maintenance workshop. Granted July 1978.
HS/FA/79/00028 Erection of extension to factory. Granted Feb 1979.
HS/FA/92/00228 Erection of two storey front extension and first floor corridor for staff

facilities with first floor extension at side. Granted July 1992.
HS/FA/05/01014 To site portable refrigerated freezer container next to existing loading

bay to rear of factory. Granted January 2001.

Page 42



National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (PS) (2014)
Policy FA1 - Strategic Policy for Western Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy SC3 - Promoting Sustainable and Green Design
Policy SC7 - Flood Risk
Policy EN5 - Local Nature Reserves (LNR)
Policy EN6 - Local Wildlife Site (LWR)
Policy E1   -  Existing employment land and premises

Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (DMP) (2015)
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy DM4 - General Access
Policy DM5 - Ground Conditions
Policy DM6 - Pollution and Hazards
Policy HN8 – Biodiversity and Green Space

Other Policies/Guidance
ESCC (East Sussex County Council) Guidance for parking at non-residential development.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.

Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
Function well;
Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
Are visually attractive in terms of:

Layout
Architecture

Page 43



Landscaping
Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:

Building types
Materials
Arrangement of streets

Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.

Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultations comments
Highways - Objection subject to conditions (Nos. 6,7,8,9 & 10).

Ecology Officer - No objection

Arboricultural Officer - No Objection subject to condition No. 3.

Natural England- No comments to make.

Hastings Borough Council (HBC) Estates section- No comments to make.

Waste Services- No objection

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) Flood Risk- No objection subject to conditions Nos. 4
& 5.

ESCC Archaeology- No objection.

Natural England- No comments to make.

Environment & Natural Resources Manager- No objection.

Tree Officer - No objection subject to during construction tree protection condition (No.3).

ESCC Planning Policy & Development Management (Waste & Minerals)- No comments to
make.

Page 44



HBC Estates Manager- No comments to make.

ESCC Flood Risk- No objection subject to conditions (Nos. 4 and 5).

Southern Water- No objection subject to pre-construction conditions (Nos. 4 and 5) and
informatives (No 3).

4. Representations
No representations received.

5. Determining Issues
a) Principle
Policy LP1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015), paragraph
4.3 of the Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014) and paragraph 11 of the NPPF set
out a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The site is within a sustainable
location with reasonable/good access to public transport, shops, services and facilities and
as such the development is considered acceptable in principle subject to other local plan
policies. Policy FA1 aims to create circa 13300m2 of B1, B2 and B8 employment floor space
at Churchfields, Castleham and Ponswood Industrial Estates in the Western Area of the
Borough. The development would provide more modern and useable B2 premises and
increase employment floor space by approximately 524 m2. Therefore the development
would meet the requirement of Hastings Planning Strategy policies E1 and FA1.

b) Impact on character and appearance of area
The development would create two, 2 storey industrial/commercial units clad in grey painted
metal with associated parking. The Ponswood industrial estate is characterised by 1 and 2
storey industrial buildings of utilitarian design, many with metal cladding. This includes the
immediate neighbouring unit of Prospect House to the east. As such the design and
appearance of the development is considered to be in industrial character with the area and
is not considered to significantly harm its appearance in compliance with Development
Management Plan policy DM1.

c) Impact on Neighbouring Residential Amenities
The development would not be located close to any residential dwellings with the closest
dwelling of 12b Drapers Way more than 100m away. As such, it is not considered that the
larger replacement buildings would have a significant impact on neighbouring residential
amenity. Furthermore, the use of the site would remain in B2 and it is not considered the
noise and disturbance created from this use could detrimentally impact neighbouring
residential amenity. The development is considered to meet the aims of the Hastings
Development Management Plan policy DM3.

d) Ecology
The development site is not located within the nature reserve or wildlife site, these are to the
south of the site. As the site is developed already it is highly unlikely it is home to protected
species. Furthermore, the Council’s Environment and Natural Resources Manager has not
objected on ecology grounds to the development.

Page 45



e) Trees
The site backs onto a woodland scrub, however this woodland does contain trees covered by
Tree Protection Orders (TPOs) and is important in terms of visual amenity for the area. As
such condition No. 3 is added to ensure the protection of any trees to the rear of the site
during construction. The development is not considered to pose any significant threat to TPO
trees or the woodland to the rear of the site.

f) Highway Safety/Parking
The development proposes 31 car parking spaces, 3 of which would be for disabled use.
This is considered to be acceptable in line with the requirements of ESCC Parking Guidance
standards and is a significant improvement of the current 12 spaces provided on site.

The level of cycle parking would also meet the requirements of ESCC Parking Guidance in
providing 7 covered spaces.

Highways safety is considered to be adequately addressed as sufficient space for cars and
larger vehicles to access the site will be provided. Submitted tracking diagrams illustrate this.

Highways conditions (Nos. 6,7,8,9 and 10) will ensure satisfactory development of the new
access, completion of parking spaces and layout in line with approved plans, details of the
proposed cycle shed have been submitted and stopping up of the existing access.
Informative note No. 4 will also be included to alert the applicant to the requirement of a
S171 licence for the construction of the access from ESCC.

The development is not considered to pose a highways danger and provides adequate
parking on site for vehicles in compliance with policy DM3 of the Development Management
Plan.

g) Surface and Ground Water Drainage
The application has been submitted with an accompanying Sustainable Drainage Strategy.
The ESCC Flood Risk Team (Local Lead Flood Authority) have not objected to the
application but further information is required via conditions to ensure the development does
not increase flooding on the site or elsewhere. These conditions (Nos 4 and 5) will be
included as pre-construction (before construction of the development but not demolition) and
will cover:-

Ensuring the submitted surface water drainage strategy is followed
Limiting surface water runoff and requiring evidence of how this will be achieved
Evidence that Southern water agree to proposed drainage discharge rate and sewer
connection
Management of surface water flows
Maintenance and management plan for the entire drainage system
Evidence that the drainage system had been constructed as per the final agreed drainage
designs

Page 46



Southern Water have also not objected but requested the inclusion of a conditions (Nos. 4
and 5) in line with the above and an informative to be included regarding connection to the
public sewer which will be included.

h) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice Guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development."

This development is not within a sensitive area as defined by Regulation 2 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not
exceed the thresholds of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.

i) Screening of Application under Habitats Regulations 2017 - Impact of Development on
Ashdown Forest Special Area of Conservation ( SAC)

The Council undertook an Air Quality Impact Assessment in 2018. The purpose of the
assessment was to identify likely significant effects of planned housing and employment
growth in Hastings Borough on the conservation objectives of Ashdown Forest Special Area
of Conservation (SAC) from 2017 to 2033. The assessment took account of the traffic growth
expected on roads within the vicinity of the Ashdown Forest SAC/Special Protection Area
(SPA), not just arising from development within Hastings, but also, compliant with the
requirement of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, in combination
with the anticipated growth arising from the development plans of other neighbouring
authorities. The focus of the Assessment was on Ashdown Forest SAC and SPA.

It was not considered necessary to consider air quality implications of growth in Hastings
Borough on the Pevensey Levels SAC and Ramsar site or the Lewes Downs SAC. In respect
of Pevensey Levels SAC/Ramsar site the interest feature of this SAC (Anisus vorticulus -
aka. a snail) is not affected by nitrogen from vehicle emissions. Lewes Downs SAC is too far
removed to be affected.  Nitrogen deposition from additional traffic beyond that modelled
would have to be four times that currently expected from all traffic to exceed critical load at
this location.

The Council has modelled the expected growth in Hastings to 2033 including the Local Plan,
existing planning permissions and the emerging Area Action Plan and demonstrated that
development will not result in an adverse effect on the integrity of Ashdown Forest either
alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  As such the proposed development is
considered to be within the allowances made within the strategic modelling and is not
considered to harm the special conservation objectives of Ashdown Forest, Pevensey Levels
or Lewes Downs Special Areas of Conservation.

j) Sustainable Construction
Hastings Planning Strategy (2014) policies SC3 and SC4 which promote sustainable and
green design. The proposed development will include a sustainable urban drainage system,
will have a limited impact on biodiversity, provide new, modern buildings that will have better
insulation properties than existing and provide recycling facilities in compliance with policy

Page 47



SC3. Furthermore, the development will be required to meet building regulations should it be
constructed to meet the low carbon levels required within the building regulations.

6. Local Finance Considerations
No financial contributions are required for this development.

7. Conclusion
The development would provide an increased floor space of higher quality B1 use on site,
whilst ensuring visual and residential amenity is protected, local wildlife and trees are
protected, a sufficient level of on-site parking is provided, which would not lead to highways
danger or increased risk of flooding.

These proposals comply with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.

The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

8. Recommendation
Grant permission subject to conditions and informatives.

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

8239/P1B, 8239/P2A, 8239/P3D, 8239/P4, 8810/1 Issue: A, 8511/01 Issue:
A

3. Prior to construction following demolition of existing buildings, tree protective
measures and fencing in line with BS5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design,
demolition and construction- Recommendations" shall be installed to the
front of the rear boundary of the site and retained for the lifetime of the
construction period.

Page 48



4. Post demolition of the existing structures on site and prior to excavation or
construction a maintenance & management plan and detailed design
drawings for the entire drainage system should be submitted in writing to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority to ensure the designed
system takes into account design standards of those responsible for
maintenance.

The management plan should cover the following:
a) Clearly state who will be responsible for managing all aspects of the
surface water drainage system, including piped drains, and the appropriate
authorities should be satisfied with the submitted details.
b) Written contractual evidence that these responsibility arrangements will
remain in place throughout the lifetime of the development should be
provided to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
c) Surface water runoff should be limited to 2.5 l/s for all rainfall events
including the 1 in 100 (plus climate change). Evidence of this (in the form of
hydraulic calculations) should be submitted with the detailed drainage
drawings. The hydraulic calculations should take into account the
connectivity of the different surface water drainage features.
d) Detailed designs should include information on how surface water flows
exceeding the capacity of the surface water drainage features will be
managed safely.
e) Evidence that Southern Water have agreed to the proposed discharge
rate and connection should be submitted in writing to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority.

5. Prior to occupation of the development, evidence (including photographs)
should be submitted in writing to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority showing that the drainage system has been constructed as per the
final agreed detailed drainage designs as per condition 4.

6. The development shall not be occupied until a turning space for vehicles has
been provided and constructed in accordance with the approved plans as
per condition 4 or details which have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The turning space shall thereafter be
retained for that use and shall not be used for any other purpose.

7. The development shall not be occupied until parking areas have been
provided in accordance with the approved plans as per condition 4 or details
which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority and the areas shall
thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the
parking of motor vehicles.

8. The development shall not be occupied until a covered, weatherproof cycle
parking area for minimum 7 cycles has been provided in accordance with
(plan no. 8239/P3D ) or details which have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area shall thereafter be
constructed within 4 weeks of approval and retained in perpetuity for that
use and shall not be used other than for the parking of cycles.

Page 49



9. Prior to the date on which the building hereby permitted is first occupied, the
existing vehicular access shown on the submitted plan no 8239/P3D shall be
stopped up and the kerb and footway reinstated in accordance with details
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

10. The new access shall be in the position shown on the submitted plan
number 8239/P3D and laid out and constructed in accordance with the
attached HT401 diagram (Informative note 5) and all works undertaken shall
be executed and completed by the applicant to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted.

11. With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. To protect nearby veteran trees covered by Tree Preservation Orders and
maintain the visual amenity of the area in compliance with policy EN3 of the
Hastings Planning Strategy (2014).

4. To reduce the risk of flooding on site and to surrounding areas in compliance
with policy SC7 of the Hastings Planning Strategy (2014)

5. To reduce the risk of flooding on site and to surrounding areas in compliance
with policy SC7 of the Hastings Planning Strategy (2014)

6. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the
access and proceeding along the highway in compliance with policy DM4 of
the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015).

7. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the
access and proceeding along the highway in compliance with policy DM4 of
the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015).

8. In order that the development site is accessible by non car modes and to
meet the objectives of sustainable development in compliance with policy
DM4 of the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015).

9. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the
access and proceeding along the highway in compliance with policy DM4 of
the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015)..

Page 50



10. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the
access and proceeding along the highway in compliance with policy DM4 of
the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015).

11. To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with Hastings DMP(2015)
policy DM3.

Notes to the Applicant

1. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

2. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

3. Should any sewer be found during construction works, an investigation of
the sewer will be required to ascertain its condition, the number of properties
served, and potential means of access before any further works commence
on site.

The applicant is advised to discuss the matter further with Southern Water,
Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW
(Tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk”.

Southern Water requires a formal application for a connection to the public
sewer to be made by the applicant or developer.

A formal application for connection to the public sewerage system is
required in order to service this development, please contact Southern
Water, Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21
2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk. Please read
Southern Water's New Connections Services Charging Arrangements
documents which has now been published and is available to read on our
website via the following link
https://beta.southernwater.co.uk/infrastructurecharges.

4. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the need for a S171 Licence for the
construction of an access. Please contact East Sussex County Council
Transport Development Control on 01273 482254.

Page 51



5. HT401

THE AREA HIGHWAY MANAGER WILL REQUIRE NOTICE OF
COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS ON OR ADJACENT TO THE HIGHWAY.

Notes to be read in conjunction with attached highway comments and
conditions

(a) In urban areas the treatment of the radii shall be accordance with the
requirements of the Highway Construction Engineer.
(b) Any existing ditch shall be cleaned out to even fall and piped to a size to
accept the maximum flow of water likely to arise (internal diameter 300mm
or as agreed with the Highway Construction Engineer).
(c) Where an existing access is to be stopped up the applicant is required to
raise the existing dropped kerb and make good the footway/verge and kerb.
(d) Any existing footway shall be made good with similar construction and
surfacing.
(e) Where the edge of the carriageway is already defined by Continental
Channel, dropped Continental Channel sections (if available) or concrete
channel blocks shall be used instead of dropped kerbs and if necessary the
transition between the constructions made in in-situ concrete to the
satisfaction of the Highway Construction Engineer.
(f) Any gates are to be set back a minimum distance of 5 metres (11 metres
for farm or industrial accesses) from the edge of the carriageway and are to
open away from the highway.
(g) The applicant’s attention is drawn to the necessity to ensure that no
surface water is allowed to flow from the development onto the highway and
similarly no surface water from the highway should be allowed to flow into
the site. The provision (by the applicant) of positive drainage measures may
be required to collect any flow of surface water.

Page 52



(h) Any necessary alterations to the property or services of, any statutory
authority or undertaker shall be carried out at the expense of the applicant
and under the supervision of such authority or undertaker to their
satisfaction.
(i) If the requirements outlined in these details and/or notes conflict with the
requirements of the Fire Officer then the Fire Officer’s requirements shall
prevail.
(j) Reference to Sub-Base (Type 1) in the access section diagram refers to
graded granular sub base complying with Clause 803 Specification for
highway works (SHW). (March 1998 updated with amendments including
November 2005, May and November 2006 and May 2007) and subsequent
amendments.
(k) You must ensure that the contractor has ten million pounds public liability
insurance and one of their employees holds a current Supervisors New
Roads and Street Works Act Certificate and at least one operative on site
should hold an Operators Certificate. A list of contractors with the required
certificates is available from the Transport Development Control team
Please email us at development.control.transport@eastsussex.gov.uk or call
us 01273 335443. (If you decide to use one that is not on the list, you must
ensure that copies of the certificates are supplied by the contractor to the
Transport Development Control team).
(I) Your attention is drawn to the fact that your contractor will have to book
road space under the Traffic Management Act 2004. Please ask them to
contact the Network Co-ordination Team on 0845 60 80 193 who will need
at least 21 days notice of the commencement of works.
(m) The County Council charges a fee for works on or adjacent to the
highway. Please email us at
development.control.transport@eastsussex.gov.uk or call us 01273 335443.
The Highway Inspectors require at least 15 days notice of your intention to
commence works under a PWA in order that the necessary utility service
checks may be completed before works commence. Three months notice is
required for major schemes.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mr R Temple, Telephone 01424 783254

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/18/00547 including all letters and documents

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item:  
 
 

 
Report to: 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Date: 

 
7 November 2018  

 
Report from: 

 
Planning Services Manager 

 
Title of report: PLANNING APPEALS & DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 

 
Purpose of report: 

 
To inform the Planning Committee of any planning appeals that 
have been lodged,  of any decisions received from the Planning 
Inspectorate and the number of delegated decisions made 
between 25 September 2018 to 26 October 2018 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
That the report be noted 

 
 
The following appeals have been received: 
 

Address/Applicat
ion Number 

Proposal PSM’s Rec. Where the 
Decision 

was made 

Type of 
appeal 

35 Heron Close, 
St Leonards-on-
sea  
HS/FA/18/00443 

Proposed first floor 
side  
extension 

REFUSE DELEGATED PLANNING 
 

 
 
There are no appeal decisions. 
 

Type of Delegated Decision Number of Decisions 

Granted Permission 75 

Part Granted 2 

Prior Approval Approved 1 

Refused Permission 8 

Withdrawn 2 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



 
Background Papers: 
Various correspondences with Planning Inspectorate 
 
 
Report written by: 
Lucy Brooks – Tel: (01424) 783264  

Email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk 

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 12 September 2018
	5a White Rock Fountain, (Seafront),
	HS-FA-18-00453 White Rock Fountain (Seafront)

	5b (Iberian Lighting) Plot Small w, Drury Lane
	HS-FA-18-00547 (Iberian Lighting) Plot Small W, Drury Lane

	6 Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions

